ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, April 7, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote, Miller and Lunt
and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Beverly Emerson, Peter Ditchett, Steve Jarrett, Jack
Bates, Diane Hall, Bob Siegenthaler and Tim Polky.

OPEN DISCUSSION: Selectperson Carey said he will find out the date for the dedication ceremony for
the Fishermen’s Memorial. Selectperson Carey asked the Town Manager to consider budgeting funds for
the purchase of four blinds for the windows in the meeting room to block the sun from the Select Board
members’ eyes during the spring and summer. Selectperson Lunt said he felt blinds might not be
necessary if the Select Board’ s meeting time was changed to 7 p.m. to make attendance at the meetings
more accessible for working people.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.
- Minutes. ........... On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was voted 5-0
to approve the minutes of March 31, 2008, as written.

- Communications. . . .. (1) Two memos dated April 3, 2008, were received from Supt Harvey. The
Town Manager said the increase proposed for St. George is now 4.87%,
but thiswill not be afirm figure until the Stateis heard from and afinal
budget is prepared.

(2) MSAD #50 meeting agendas were received.
(3) February 2008 meeting minutes were received from the Communications
Committee.
(4) March 2008 CEO Report was received.
-Warrant . ........... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER'’S REPORT:

- Appointments Update: On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to appoint
Duke Ellisto athree-year term on the Conservation Commission. Two appointment forms were signed
by the Board members.

- GIS Applications. The Town Manager said he inquired of Rockbound Computer what it would cost
to bring all of the Town Office computers up to a standard to efficiently run the new GIS program. He
was told it would cost approximately $3,300 and that software for all of the computers to use GIS will
cost approximately $2,500-$3,500. There would also be a license fee each year of approximately $300-
$400. The Town Manager said several years ago a sum of money was voted on for new property maps
and the amount of $7,200.00 remains in the New Property Map account. He asked if the Select Board
was interested in having him pursue bringing the computers up standard using that fund. Chairperson
Driscoll asked how many computers were involved. The Town Manager said there are presently 10
computers in the Town Office, two of them are up to standard and 8 need upgrading. Selectperson Cote
asked the Town Manager if he had checked out getting new computers instead of upgrading old ones.
The Town Manager said he was told the difference was about $90, that it was better to get new ones, and
that the amount quoted was for new ones. Selectperson Lunt asked why it was necessary to have more
than two computers capable of handling the GIS program. The Town Manager said he feels the number
of requests to access the program, especially once people know thistool is available, might cause
problems if only two computers are available for access. Diane Hall said she thought it was important to
have all of the computers upgraded but didn’'t understand the need to spend the extra $2,500 if this
program could ultimately be viewed on the web. Town Manager Falla said that the $2500 is for the
program to have the information available on the web. She was also concerned about future costs.
Selectperson Carey asked how the $7,200 was originally budgeted. The Town Manager said it was




budgeted for property maps. Selectperson Carey said he would like the $7,200 left in the fund; he didn’t
like money spent on something it was not specifically budgeted for. Tim Polky said the voters weretold
the money would be for property maps and accessing the GIS program. On a motion by Selectperson
Cote (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to authorize the Town Manager to use funds remaining in the New
Property Map account to bring the Town Office computers up to standard and to purchase the software
required to use the GIS program.
- Committees: - The Planning Board meets Tuesday, 4/8, a 7 p.m.
- The Coagtal Waters Management Board meets Thursday, 4/10.at 6 p.m.
- The Recreation Committee meets Sunday, 4/13, a 6.m.
- The Shellfish Joint Board has a public hearing on management ordinance
Thursday, 4/10, a 6 p.m.
- The Communication Committee meets Wednesday, 4/9 at 6 p.m.
- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets Wednesday,
4/9 at 4 p.m. (There was agreement that the Committee would present
acourtesy copy of its eventual report to the Select Board beforeiit is
made public.)
- The Scholarship Award Committee met today at 3 p.m., and meets
again on 5/6. The deadline for applications is 5/1.

OLD BUSINESS:

- 2008 Action Plan Update: “Board of Select Board” to be changed to “Select Board” on the cover of
the Plan. On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Lunt), it was voted 5-0 to approve the 2008 Action Plan.
The Town Manager will put the Plan on the town website.

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was no new information to report.

- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager followed up with respect to the discussion at the last
meeting regarding the concealed firearms permit application process. He reviewed with the Select Board
language proposed to be struck from that section of the Policy Manual and the start of the process of
turning the permit applications over to the State Police. As stated at the last meeting, thiswill be
considered by the Board when the entire Policy Manual is voted on.

General Assistance Voucher Policy — No policy change.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Budget Committee — An Item No. 4 is to be added under “Duties’ as
follows. “Other budgetary reviews as requested by the Select Board.”

Recreation Committee — No policy change.

Records Officer —No policy change.

Quialification of Fire Officers —No policy change.

Compensation of Member s of Town Boards — Selectperson Lunt said he was approached by a member
of the Planning Board who said the $10.00 they are paid for meetings and hearings does not cover the cost
of gasoline, especialy if they haveto travel to on-site public hearings. This section does not specifically
mention on-site hearings. The Town Manager was requested to draft language for insertion in this section
to make sure Planning Board members are paid for on-site hearings.

Personnel Policy — The Town Manager distributed a memorandum with suggestions regarding this
section. Chairperson Driscoll asked if these had been given alegal review. The Town Manager said they
had not. The Town Manager said he noticed the policy goes from “Employment” to “Termination” with
no middle ground. He said he felt disciplinary action should be addressed. Selectperson Lunt said he
thought only the Town Manager should have the authority to fire an employee to avoid hasty decisions by
supervisors. Selectperson Carey asked what if a safety issue required an employee to be removed
immediately. The Town Manager said supervisors should have some authority to remove employeesin
certain situations, but the ultimate decision on firing an employee should be up to the Town Manager.
The Town Manager said the Select Board should also be looking at the policy with respect to overtime
and comp time. He said he would prepare special sections on that and on disciplinary matters and an

2




appeal s process which can be considered by the Select Board and then sent to the Town Attorney for
review.

Policy on Harassment — No policy change.
Pages 14-36 of the Policy Manual will be reviewed at the meeting of April 28.

- Annual Bid Work: Regarding the winter roads contract, Chairperson Driscoll said he felt the Select
Board should take the time to look at the proposal prepared by the Town Manager and Tim Polky. He
said if the conclusion was that it was a valid proposal the Town would be remiss in not undertaking it.
The Town Manager was asked if he had spoken to Harlan Black about a one-year contract for the work,
and he said he had not yet done so. Diane Hall asked if there had been any input from the Budget
Committee. Chairperson Driscoll said no, not yet. Bob Siegenthaler said it would be a good idea if the
capital costs of the town proposal could be seen along with the operating costs. Jack Bates agreed with
that. He also reminded the Board that this is one of the charges to the Committeeto Appraise Town
Government and it ison its agenda. Chairperson Driscoll said the town proposal should be formulated
and reviewed by the Committee to Appraise Town Government and the Budget Committee.
Selectpersons Carey and Miller said they will meet with their respective contacts to get their input on the
town proposal. Chairperson Driscoll said there should be preliminary discussions and then everyone
brought together at a meeting for general discussion. The Town Manager asked if the Select Board
wanted him to speak to Harlan Black while the town proposal is being considered. There was general
agreement that he should.

- Revaluation Action Plan: Selectperson Cote said she viewed the Harris Computer website and feels
that it would not be worth the extra money to go with Vision. On amotion by Selectperson Cote (Miller),
it was voted 5-0 to award Parker Appraisal the revaluation project at $165,000.

NEW BUSINESS:

- May-June Newsletter Review: This matter was tabled for a future meeting.

- Election of Acting Chairperson for Next Meeting: On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Lunt), it was
voted 4-0 to elect Selectperson Cote as acting chairperson for the Select Board meeting on April 14, 2008.
Selectperson Cote abstained.

OTHER: Peter Ditchett said he has attended some school board meetings and has learned that the cost of
educating a student in St. George is $13,700. He said the national average is $7,500 and the Maine
average is $9,500. He wanted to know why a small town on the coast of Maine is paying one of the
highest school billsin the nation. He said one of the problems is that Thomaston dedicated the taxes paid
by the Dragon Cement Company toward its sewers, which is of no benefit to the people of St. George and
increases St. George's share of the school budget. Mr. Ditchett said the people of St. George should
know exactly what they are paying. Chairperson Driscoll said a town newdletter article on the cost to the
St. George taxpayers would be appropriate. Selectperson Cote said it is on the agenda. She asked Mr.
Ditchett if he would like to write an article for the newsletter, but he said he did not feel he was qualified.
Selectperson Cote asked him if he would be willing to talk to Larry Bailey who is doing articles on the
schools, and Mr. Ditchett said he would.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, April 14, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary
3



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, April 14, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Carey, Cote and Miller and
Town Manager Falla present. Chairperson Driscoll and Selectperson Lunt were absent. Also
present were Peter Ditchett, Steve Jarrett, Jack Bates, Bob Dennison and Bob Cremonni.

OPEN DISCUSSION: Bob Dennison said he went to the Town website to view the minutes of
the Committee to Appraise Town Government. He said the website said the minutes were
available there, but he could not find them. The Town Manager said it might be a computer
glitch and he would check on this. Selectperson Carey asked when limits would be taken off the
roads. The Town Manager said the roads were posted until April 30; any change would depend
on conditions.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.
- Minutes............ The minutes of April 7, 2008, were amended as follows:

(1) Under GIS Applications, “new processors’ should be
changed to “new computers.” When Diane Hall said she did
not understand the need to spend the extra $2,500 if the
program could be viewed on the web, it should have been
stated that the Town Manager explained that the $2500 is
intended to make the program available on the web.

(2) Under Revaluation Action Plan, the motion made was to

award Parker Appraisal the revaluation project at $165,000.
On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 3-0
to approve the minutes of April 7, 2008, as amended.

- Communications. .. .... (1) MSAD #50 Preliminary Budget information was
received. Information is still needed from the State before
afinal budget is prepared.

(2) Copies of letters from Knox County regardmg the
Airport Advisory Committee were received. Dick
LaChance and John Newcomb, both residents of the
Town of St. George, have been appointed to the
Committee.

(3) An email was received from Chairperson Driscoll
inquiring when the Select Board would like to schedule a
meeting when all concerned could review the figures for
and discuss the town works proposal. The Town
Manager reviewed the upcoming meeting dates and said
the earliest he could recommend would be the meeting of
May 19. There was general agreement to schedule it
for that date. Bob Dennison asked if the figures
included agarage. The Town Manager said they did

not. He said Tim Polky had said that a garage wouldn’t be
needed for equipment and that maintenance could be done at



adifferent location, but a building would be something to
consider in the future. The Town Manager said he and
Mr. Polky spoke with Charlene Black about extending the
current winter roads contract for one year, but she said she
was not interested. The current winter roads contract expires
May 1.

-Warrant . ........... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:
- Committees. - The Coastal Waters Management Board met 4/10. Selectperson
Carey reported on the meeting.
- The Comprehensive Planning Committee meets 4/15.
- The Solid Waste & Recycling Committee met 4/9.
- The Recreation Committee met 4/13.
- The Shellfish Joint Board met 4/10.
- The Communication Committee met 4/9 and meets again on 4/23.
- The Committee to Appraise Town Government met 4/9 and meets
again on 4/23.
- The Reorganization Planning Committee meeting to be rescheduled
for 4/29 or 4/30.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said a response to Chris Leavitt was
received from R. Beeson of Rackliff Island.

- May-June Newsletter Review: The Town Manager said on the front page it should be noted
that Cleanup Day isto be discussed in conjunction with the St. George Days fundraising
breakfast. On the back page, under Seasonal Tips, it should be stated that burn permits should be
called for on the day they are needed, not in advance.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Appointment of Acting Town Manager: On amotion by Selectperson Miller (Carey), it was
voted 3-0 to appoint Tim Polky as Acting Town Manager while Town Manager Fallaison
vacation.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, April 28, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.
Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, April 28, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote, Miller
and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Peter Ditchett, Steve Jarrett, Jack
Bates and Diane Hall.

OPEN DISCUSSION: The Town Manager distributed the Town Calendar for May.
Chairperson Driscoll complimented Wayne Judkins for the work done on the tennis courts.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. Rackliff Island Causeway Project added under Town Manager.
Annual Appointments added under Old Business.
May Meeting Schedule added under New Business.

- Minutes. ........... The minutes of April 14, 2008, were amended as follows:

On Page 2 [Section 3 under Communications], the words “for
one year” should be stricken. On amotion by Selectperson
Carey (Lunt), it was voted 3-0 to approve the minutes of

April 14, 2008, as amended, with Chairperson Driscoll and
Selectperson Lunt abstaining because they were not present at
that meeting.

- Communications. ... ... (1) An Energy Audit is scheduled for Friday, May 2. The
audit involves the Town Office facility and the Solid Waste
facility. In connection with this, the Town Manager said he
felt alternative energy options were something to look into.
Selectperson Lunt said about five years ago when he was on
the Facilities Committee he was at the fire station in Port
Clyde and was told that the building had not been finished
properly, resulting in heat loss. He said this was something
to look at with respect to town facilities.

(2) The Town Manager said he received brochures for the
Elected Officials Workshops, the first one coming up on
June 17. He said he hasregistration formsif anyone is
interested in attending. Selectperson Cote said she felt at
least one of the Town'’s elected officials should attend.

(3) Special Permits for off-premises catering were sought by
Cappy’s for locations on Harts Neck Road. These involve a
arehearsal dinner for 100 people on June 27 and awedding
with 225 people on June 28. The Town Manager said a
hearing was not required, but the Select Board had to approve
the Special Permits. On amotion by Selectperson Lunt
(Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve the Special Permits
requested by Cappy’s, and the approvals were signed by the
Board.

(4) Roadside Cleanup Day is scheduled for Saturday, May 3.
(5) The St. George Days Pancake Breakfast is scheduled for



Saturday, May 3.
-Warrant . ........... Two weeks of Warrants were reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Rackliff Island Causeway Project: The Town Manager reported that Culvert Restoration
Services started work last Monday. Linersare in place and the work should be completed by the
end of thisweek. The Town Manager also reported that FEMA contacted the Town about
money being available for this project. The amount isunknown at thistime. The Town
Manager said he and Tim Polky have an appointment with a representative of FEMA the week
after next.

- Committees. - The Planning Board meets 4/29 at 7 p.m. The Town Manager said this

was a special meeting which involved findings of fact for the Global
Tower Project and site plan review for the Tenants Harbor General
Store.

- The Budget Committee meets 5/6.

- The Coastal Waters Management Board meets 5/8.

- The Shellfish Joint Board meets 5/8.

- The Conservation Commission meets 5/1.

- The Scholarship Award Committee meets 5/6 at 3 p.m.

- The Reorganization Planning Committee meets 4/30 at 6:30 p.m. at
Rockland City Hall. A cost-sharing proposal is to be presented at the
meeting.

OLD BUSINESS:
- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.
- Policy Manual Review: Pages 24-36 were reviewed by the Board.

Conservation Commission — The Town Manager was concerned with language in Section
B which states that the Conservation Commission shall “keep an inventory of all open areas.”
He felt it was unclear as to whether the Commission would just keep an inventory on hand or
would create one. The Commission’s responsibility isto be clarified.

Posting of Town Ways— No policy change.

Street Light Policy — No policy change.

Acceptance of Private Roads as Public Roads — No policy change.

Winter Sand Policy — The third section statesthat there would be a charge for sand made
availableto St. George contractors and that the loading of the sand would be done by the Town's
contractor. The Town Manager said the Town does not currently charge for the sand and that it
isself-service. It was agreed that the policy should reflect this.

Implied Resignation — No policy change.

Coastal Water s Management Board Procedures — No policy change.

Board and Committee M eeting Times — Selectperson Lunt said in 2005 the Select Board
meeting time was temporarily changed to 6 p.m. from 7 p.m., and he felt it should go back to 7
p.m. The policy states that the meeting times should be convenient for board and committee
members, but Selectperson Lunt feels the times should also be convenient for the public.
Chairperson Driscoll said a phrase should be inserted to state that the meeting times should also
be convenient for members of the public. A change inthe Select Board' s meeting time will be
discussed at afuture date.




Smoking Policy — Solid Waste Facility — No policy change.

Chairperson Driscoll then asked if there were any other policies that should be considered.
The Town Manager distributed to the Select Board copies of two sections of the Charter. He
said he has always understood that that the Town Manager is responsible for administrative
functions and he feelsthere is a need for a policy which clarified the relation-ship between
committees and the town administration and if that policy should include attendance at all
meetings by a staff person. He said if all boards and committees don’t have an administrative
contact, the Town Manager doesn’'t have the information on file and available to him that might
be requested by someone. Selectperson Cote said communication does need to be improved, in
particular, the Communication Committee often has questions only the Town Manager can
answer. Diane Hall agreed, stating that the Town Manager gets conflicting information from
committee members. Chairperson Driscoll said it would be good to codify and set forth the
accountability of and relationships between committees, the Select Board and the Town
Manager. The Town Manager said he will work on arough draft of a policy to clarify
boundaries and relationships and present it to the Board for review.

- Annual Bid Contracts: The contracts between the Town of St. George and Steve Jarrett for
lawn mowing services, roadside mowing services and trash pick-up services were signed by the
Select Board and Mr. Jarrett. The Town Manager said he was authorized by the Select Board on
March 31 to enter into negotiations with Harlan Black and Reggie Montgomery with respect to
the winter roads contract. He said Harlan Black said no to the contract and he was unclear as to
what he was negotiating with Mr. Montgomery. The Town Manager said Tim Polky was
contacted by Jim Kalloch who does the work for South Thomaston. Mr. Kalloch said he would
be willing to talk to them about what was involved in the winter roads work for the Town. A
discussion ensued as to whether it would be proper to talk to Mr. Kalloch at this time.
Selectperson Lunt said he felt the work should be put out for bids again and that all avenues
should be pursued. Selectperson Cote said the meeting with Mr. Kalloch would just be
informational and the fact that he does work for South Thomaston fit in with the fact that
consolidation of the work with another town had been considered at one time. The Town
Manager said he has no problem with Mr. Kalloch meeting with him and Tim Polky to find out
what is involved, but he said he has to close the door on negotiations with Reggie Montgomery
before he talksto anyone else. Selectperson Cote said she feels Mr. Montgomery closed the door
on negotiations when he refused to budge on his request for a 5-year contract. Chairperson
Driscoll said he felt the Town Manager should contact Mr. Montgomery to confirm Mr.
Montgomery’ s understanding that his negotiations with the Town for the winter roads contract
are closed, and then the Town Manager could have a meeting with Jim Kalloch and the re-
soliciting of bids could be considered. The Town's own work proposal is scheduled to be
discussed at the Select Board meeting on May 19, and Steve Jarrett asked if there would be time
for input from the Committee to Appraise Town Government before afinal decisionismade. In
the meantime, the Town Manager will clarify the situation with Reggie Montgomery with
respect to the winter roads contract and may have information-gathering conversations only with
persons interested in the winter roads work.

- Annual Appointments. On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0to
appoint Bonnie Percival as Election Clerk for atwo-year term and Neil Pollis as Shellfish
Warden for aone-year term. The Town Manager reported that Ryan Miller has declined his
appointment as an alternate to the Coastal Waters Management Board. He said David
Schmanska told him he knows of someone who might be interested in that position.




NEW BUSINESS:

- May Meeting Schedule: The Town Manager said he would not be available for the Select
Board meeting scheduled for May 5. It was decided by the Select Board that there would be no
meeting on that date. The May meetings would be on May 12 and May 19.

- Other:

The Town Manager reported that |etters are going out this week to all property ownersin the
areas where streetlights have been recommended for removal, notifying them of the streetlight
hearing review scheduled for May 12. The Street Light Policy allows affected property owners
15 days from the date of notice to respond, so there can be no decision by the Select Board on
this prior to the May 12 meeting.

Selectperson Lunt gave a report on the Solid Waste Committee, and he distributed literature
on fluorescent light bulbs. The Town Manager said he has been informed by Risk Management
that Larry Batz'strailer on the solid waste facility site will have to be removed.

Selectperson Carey asked who was coordinating Town Cleanup Day. Selectperson Cote
said the Conservation Committee was. She also said pickup trucks would be needed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:24 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, May 12, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 12, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6:02 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote,
Miller and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Among those also present were Peter Ditchett,
Jack Bates, Diane Hall, Bob Dennison, Bill Zierden, Bob Cremonni, Anita Siegenthaler, Linda
Monaghan, Suzanne Lucius, AnitaVolpe, Don McClain, Nancy Lunt, John Crane, Don
Jacobson, Sandra Wilkinson, Johanna Tutone, Larry Olivieri, Regina Priestley, Rebecca Haskell,
Jane Hall, Albert Watts, Carol Putansu and Barbara Broadbent.

OPEN DISCUSSION:

Diane Hall asked whose responsibility it was to install stop signs. She believesthereisa
need for a stop sign at the intersection of Mechanic Street and Route 131. The Town Manager
said it wasthe State’ s responsibility. Ms. Hall asked if one could be requested, and the Town
Manager said yes it could.

Bob Cremonni said State Representatives Rector and Savage would be attending the June 8
meeting of the St. George Community Association to speak about the bike path.

Selectperson Carey inquired as to the status of the ballfield on Elizabeth Scott’ s property.
The Town Manager said the ballfield would most likely not be available for use this summer
because the weather has prevented the completion of work on the ballfield.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. Boston Post Cane added under New Business.
Victualers/I nnkeepers Licenses added under New Business.
Tree Growth Removal Penalty added under New Business.

- Minutes. ........... On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 4-0
to approve the minutes of April 28, 2008, as written.
- Communications. .. .... (1) MSAD #50 meeting agendas were received.

(2) Average home value calculations were received. The
average home value has been calculated at $215,976.00.
Ann Matlock isworking on a spread sheet for review.

(3) April 2008 CEO Report was received.

(4) Region 8 public hearings to be held on 5/19 and 5/20.

(5) A liquor license application was received from the Dip
Net with arequest for awaiver of apublic hearing. On
amotion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0
to waive a public hearing on the liquor license application.

. On amotion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted
5-0to grant the liquor license to the Dip Net.
-Warrant . ........... Two weeks of Warrants were reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Rackliff Island Causeway Project: The Town Manager reported that the project has been
completed. He also reported that arepresentative of FEMA did not show up a a meeting
scheduled for last week. He wastold that FEMA would be back in touch with them.

- Committees: - The Planning Board meets 5/13 at 7 p.m.




- The Budget Committee met 5/6 and reviewed the figures for the Town’'s
public works proposal. The Committee will attend the Select Board
meeting on 5/19.

- The Coagtal Waters Management Board met 5/8.

- The Recreation Committee meets 5/18.

- The Communication Committee met 5/7 and is working on the website.

- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets 5/14. The

Committee islooking at six other towns with similar characteristics.

- The Scholarship Award Committee met 5/6. The Committee reviewed
seven applications and made its recommendations. The awards will be
given in June at the high school’s award night.

- The Reorganization Planning Committee met 4/30. Chairperson Driscoll
reported on the meeting. He said there was a disparity between SAD 50
and SAD 5 of $2,000,000 over and above essential services and the cost-
sharing proposal presented would have an unfair impact on SAD 5. He said
an attempt is being made to come up with a fairer cost-sharing formula.
Asked about procedure, Chairperson Driscoll said the Committee votes first
and then it goesto referendum. The next meeting is scheduled for 5/20 at
6:30 p.m. inthe SAD 5 Boardroom on Lincoln Street in Rockland. Anita
Siegenthaler asked if a comparison of current formulas was available.
Chairperson Driscoll said he would provide aworksheet. Diane Hall said
she appreciated the involvement of the Town's representatives at these
meetings.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager distributed to the members of the Select Board
for their review a draft of proposed policy regarding the relationship between the Select Board
and committees.

- Annual Appointments: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Boston Pogt Cane: The Town Manager said Verona Miller passed away at the age of 104.
He asked if aletter of condolence should be sent to her family and if the Select Board would like
to approve a donation in her memory to the St. George Firefighters and Ambulance Association.
On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to send a letter of condolence and
to make a donation of $50.00 to the SGFFAA in her memory. The Town Manager then asked
about presenting the Boston Post Cane to the current oldest resident of St. George. He gave a
brief history of the Boston Post Cane. He said the voter registration list was used to find the
oldest resdent and it was determined to be Howard Barnes at age 98. The Town Manager said it
was the Select Board that made the presentation, and he asked how they would like to do it.
There was general agreement that the entire Select Board would make the presentation. The
Town Manager will contact Mr. Barnesto set up atime and place.




- VictualersgInnkeepers Licenses: The Town Manager read the ligt of license applications
received. On amotion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve al of the
applications.

- Tree Growth Removal Penalty: The Town Manager reported that the Town has received the
payment of a penalty of $532.20 from Lloyd Gray for the removal of three acres of land from the
Tree Growth Program. On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 5-0 to accept the
penalty payment.

- Streetlight Hearing Review: The Town Manager distributed to the Select Board allist of
lettersreceived from property owners for and against the recommended removal of streetlightsin
their neighborhood. Chairperson Driscoll said the procedure at this meeting would be to listen to
the comments of the property owners and then review the situation. There would be no vote on
the matter at this meeting. At 6:55 p.m., the Town Manager distributed copies of the Select
Board's Street Light Policy to the Board and to the public. Chairperson Driscoll asked for
comments from the members of the public. John Crane asked what right the Select Board had to
remove alight if the Town had voted to have it installed. The Town Manager said he contacted
the Maine Municipal Association and wastold that if the Select Board believes a streetlight
should be added the Town must vote to appropriate the cost of same, but if thereis no cost
involved in the removal of a streetlight (and the Town Manager said Central Maine Power has
told him there is no charge for removal) the Town's approval is not needed and no voteis
necessary. However, the Maine Municipal Association recommended a town vote to err on the
side of caution. Mr. Crane asked how much money would be saved by removing the streetlights.
The Town Manager said it cost the Town approximately $15,000.00 a year for the 110
streetlights currently in place. Each streetlight costs $130-$140 ayear, which would mean a
savings of approximately $4,000 if the 34 streetlights recommended for removal were removed.
Johanna Tutone said she would like to see several streetlights removed but particularly the light
on Pole #19 on Barters Point Road. Don Jacobson said he supports keeping all of the
streetlights, that they are a safety factor. Mr. Jacobson said the curve at River Road and
Wallston Road would be dangerous without a sreetlight there. He said streetlights should be
kept at the St. George School for the safety of the children. Mr. Jacobson also said he did not
understand why the Town is going after a small budget item of $4,000 when there are much
larger items in the Town budget that could be looked at. The Town Manager said a
representative of the Department of Transportation had determined that the light at the
intersection of River Road and Wallston Road was unnecessary. Mr. Jacobson said he could not
understand that determination. Don McClain said he felt that the light on Pole #7 by the Odd
Fellows Hall was unnecessary because the Odd Fellows have a parking lot light that lights the
area sufficiently. Sandra Wilkinson said it was important to keep the light on Pole #19/34 on
Clark Island Road near Outward Bound for various safety reasons, including facilitating snow
plows. Larry Olivieri said the lights on Pole #532/3 (Factory Road), Pole #7-1 and Pole
#6/53/12 (Marshall Point Road) should be kept. Mr. Olivieri said it seemed like overkill to
remove these lights. Bill Zierden spoke up for the light by the library (Pole #7/15). He said
neighboring property owners have asked that the library’s outdoor lights be turned off at night,
which makes the streetlight necessary for parking and for the crosswalk. He said if you can
spend $10,000 on fireworks, you can spend $4,000 on streetlights. Regina Priestley said the
lights on Clark Island Road are important for safety, especially in the summertime when there is
more traffic and the posted speed limit is not obeyed. People are often walking on the road and
she believes accidents will happen if the lights, particularly Pole #19/34, areremoved. Nancy




Lunt spoke up for keeping the light on Pole #4/4 on Elementary School Road near the school.
She said the St. George School back entrance is the only entrance to the school cafeteria and
gym, there are many nighttime activities, and if a student leaves school after 4 p.m. in the winter
that student would be walking home in the dark. She said removal of that light would be a
disservice to the safety of the children. Anita Volpe said she was speaking for the lights on
Watts Avenue, particularly Pole #5, which is across the street from her house. She said Watts
Avenue because it is a dead end street has become an areathat is very popular for walking and
people walk their dogs at night as she does. She also said that there are more children living on
Watts Avenue than when she first moved there and their safety should be considered. For these
reasons, she would like most of the lights on Watts Avenue to remain. Suzanne Lucius said at
her end of Watts Avenue she has a lot of illumination and she doesn’t see alot of people at night,
that not many make it all the way down to her end of the street. Bob Dennison said that perhaps
foot traffic should be added to the criteria for streetlights in the Street Light Policy. Diane Hall
spoke up for keeping the lights on Pole #4/4 (Elementary School Road), Pole #7/15 (by the
library), and Pole #3/3 (Sea Street). She said she felt the Street Light Policy should address
intersections, crosswalks and the handicapped. John Crane said there were many different safety
factors to consider and that $4,000 was cheap to pay to save someone’s life. Rebecca Haskell
said she felt the light at Pole #236/34 should be kept because of the sharp curvesin the road, the
acceleration of cars up the hill, the fact that all of the driveways in that area are blind driveways,
the increased traffic in the summer, the school bus stop, the safety of the families with young
children and the safety of the elderly residents. Carol Putansu said she agreed with Rebecca
Haskell about the light on Pole #236/34. Bill Zierden said the policy looked like it was written
for adding streetlights and that removal of lights was just added in. Chairperson Driscoll said the
policy was reviewed as awhole. Bill Zierden said because a number of concerns have been
about safety he feels the criteria are not adequate and should be revisited. Chairperson Driscoll
said this could mean adding streetlights where there are none now, which would mean spending
more money rather than saving money. Jane Hall said there was a streetlight not on the list that
shewould like removed. She said if someone on a side street wants a streetlight they should
write a letter requesting one. Albert Watts spoke up for the light at Pole #25-1 (Harts Neck
Road). He said he considers the streetlights very important in keeping vandalism and mischief
down. Hesaid he feels there should be more streetlights, not less. Don McClain said maybe the
Select Board could get a consensus of the opinions expressed. Anita Volpe said there were other
residents on Watts Avenue who were unable to attend this meeting and she felt these people
should be given time to write to the Select Board. Chairperson Driscoll said this process has
already been going on for quite sometime. Anita Siegenthaler said the Board might consider
rewriting policy with public institutions in mind and safety being the overriding consideration.
Chairperson Driscoll thanked everyone for coming. He said the Select Board would review their
comments and the implications and revisit the matter.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

Reminder: Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, May 19, 6 p.m., Town Office.
Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 19, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6:00 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote,
Miller and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Among those also present were Steve Jarrett,
Peter Ditchett, Jack Bates, Diane Hall, Bob Dennison, Anita Siegenthaler, Bob Siegenthaler, Dan
Fales, Marguerite Cutroni, Paul LaPorte, Francine LaPorte, Jane Rasmussen, John Rasmussen,
Ann Matlack, John Shea, Colin Emery, Jim Graf, Rebecca Haskell, Larry Bailey and Tim Polky.

OPEN DISCUSSION:
Bob Dennison advised that the Fishermen’s Memorial was to be dedicated on Saturday, May
24,2008, at | p.m.

REGULAR SESSION:

- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. Thefollowing itemslisted on the Agenda under New Business

were taken out of order:

Website Presentation from Communication Committee: Marguerite Cutroni, a member of the
Website Subcommittee of the Communication Committee, gave a PowerPoint presentation on
the Town of St. George Website Revision Plan. She said the committee looked at the Town
website and found that it needed updating. The presentation covered the following: Purpose (to
provide access to town information and communications), intended users (including non-
permanent residents), site goals, the State of Maine Web Accessibility Policy (which includes
persons with disabilities and persons with low level accessto the internet), access to the State of
Maine — Ready, Set, Gov! website, content and design (currently all information is accessed
from the Town home page and the aim is to make navigation of the website easier and more
efficient), web roles and responsibilities for site content and site design activities (needed are a
website manager and a professional website designer/developer). Ms. Cutroni said the Town
Manager has agreed to act asthe website manager and a professional is currently working on the
design of the website in a volunteer capacity. She said key points are the active involvement of
the website manager, information security, links to information on the State’ s website, the
involvement of a professional website designer in building the site, and ease of updating the site.
She also said it was important that the Select Board be comfortable with the website manager’s
responsibilities and suggested regular meetings to discuss editorial content. Inanswer to a
guestion from Chairperson Driscoll regarding the policy on decisions as to what public data and
records go on the website, Ms. Cutroni said the decision would be the Select Board’s. The Town
Manager said any major issues would come to the Select Board for a decision as to whether
something would go on the website and in what format. Ms. Cutroni said static information such
as news and minutes and any day-to-day items would be handled as they are now. Selectperson
Cote said property tax information would be available through alink to the Harriswebsite. The
presentation also showed online services available in various towns and State of Maine featured
online services. Ms. Cutroni said the next steps were the distribution of awebsite critique form,
the development of a schedule for completion of content and design, consolidation of citizen
input, development of the website navigation structure, and development of a page template.
Chairperson Driscoll asked what the Town might be looking at as to cost down the road.

Ms. Cutroni said right now the website developer is a volunteer, but if that person can't continue
the work may have to be done by a paid professional, and there would be the cost of software.




She said the Town Manager would have to give some input on expenses. Dan Fales asked if
there were any records of how many hits other towns were getting on their website and what
might be anticipated. Ms. Cutroni said the number is known for the Town's website, currently
300-400 a week. She said the towns picked for the presentation for comparison are comparable
towns. She said one of the things they would be looking at would be whether the website has
been improved. Chairperson Driscoll asked if she anticipated the Town having its own search
engine. Ms. Cutroni said Google is used right now. Ann Matlack said she felt it would be a
good thing if the website could answer basic questions so people would not have to cal or come
to the Town Office and take up the time of the office personnel. Ms. Cutroni said one of the
initial goals of the website is to provide easy access to basic information. The Town Manager
asked her what the committee was looking for from the Select Board tonight, and she said it was
whether or not the Select Board would give them the go-ahead. There was general agreement by
the members of the Select Board that the website revision plan should proceed. Chairperson
Driscoll said the Select Board would be working on a policy asto what information would go on
the website and in what detail.

Review of Public Works Functions/Winter Roads Contract: The Town Manager distributed a
memorandum to the Select Board which contained, among other things, arevision of the cost for
capital expense for the Town’s public works proposal from $50,000 to $60,000. Chairperson
Driscoll reviewed the reasons for the current discussion. He said only two bids on the winter
roads work were received and the current contractor, Harlan Black, did not bid. Being faced
with not the best choices, he said it was decided to explore the option of the Town doing the
work itself, and the Town Manager prepared a proposal which has been reviewed by the Budget
Committee. Dan Fales asked if further negotiations with the current contractor should be
explored. Chairperson Driscoll said they had and the contractor said no. Selectperson Miller
and the Town Manager said there were several factors involved, including problems with
equipment. Ann Matlack said the Budget Committee believes the Town Manager’s numbersin
the prepared proposa are low. She said the Budget Committee is also concerned about storage
gpace for vehicles. The Committee also looked favorably on negotiations with Jim Kalloch and
combining the work with South Thomaston. Chairperson Driscoll asked in what sense did the
Budget Committee feel the numberswere low. Ann Matlack said the committee felt the figures
for new vehicles were low. The committee also did not feel sure that the amount of money
allocated to compensate drivers was sufficient. She said the Town Manager had a figure of
$80,000 for a new vehicle and the Budget Committee thought it would be more like $120,000.
The Budget Committee also felt the compensation for seasonal employeeswas low. She said the
committee had not looked at specific vehicles but at capacity and function and it felt the Town
Manager was being fairly conservative about costs. Chairperson Driscoll asked how the Select
Board could satisfy the Budget Committee. Ann Matlack said the Budget Committee felt
entering into a contract with Jim Kalloch should be Plan A and the Town proposal should be
Plan B. She said with the Town proposal a storage facility would have to be built in the near
future. Where isthe cost for that, she asked. Chairperson Driscoll said he didn’t think it was an
either/or situation, that the Select Board could investigate both options at the same time.
Selectperson Miller introduced Colin Emery who has been involved in the bid process for
Rockland and has experience in thisarea. Mr. Emery said he agreed with Ann Matlack, that it
would cost at least $105,000 for a plow/sander, and he advised looking into a lease/purchase for
an excavator. He said the Town would be looking at $70,000/$80,000 for an excavator, that a
huge one wouldn’t be needed. He advised having a mechanically-inclined person available for




immediate necessary welding repairs. Chairperson Driscoll asked Mr. Emery for hisopinion on
other capital items. Mr. Emery said a¥4ton pickup truck would cost about $34,000. He advised
against getting anything used unless you knew how the vehicle had been used. Larry Bailey
asked if the Town's insurance would go up after putting heavy equipment on the road. The
Town Manager said that had not been factored in at this time but it would be more than is being
paid now. Mr. Bailey said he thinks there should be areserve of $50,000 in the proposal for
replacement of equipment. Selectperson Cote asked if there was a place for maintenance and the
tools for maintenance. The Town Manager said the Town would be contracting out
maintenance. Selectperson Lunt said there would be a need for onsite maintenance, especialy if
a snowplow breaks down in the middle of the night. Steve Jarrett said it was important to have
someone onsite available for immediate repairs. It was asked if fuel cost had been taken into
consideration and if the Town had fuel storage. The Town Manager said the Town did not have
fuel storage and that it would be difficult to budget for fuel because of variables. Selectperson
Lunt said it would be important for the Town to have round-the-clock onsite fueling to keep the
trucks going. Bob Siegenthaler asked if the Town was not putting the dump truck before the
cart, 0 to speak. Heasked if the Select Board was going to pursue the bid process. Chairperson
Driscoll said the Select Board is in the midst of afact-finding process and one of the options
being considered is going back to the bid process. He said all options are being explored and the
purpose of the discussion at this meeting was to allow opinions to be presented and to gather
information. Ann Matlack said she would have to be really convinced that there was no other
viable option to the town proposal, that a viable option would be to enter into a good deal with a
local contractor and not have the Town involved in the expense of getting its own equipment and
workers. Bob Dennison said quality of work should be discussed, whether it is done by the
Town or an outside contractor. Colin Emery said if you go to bids make sure any contract is
written up so that the roads are taken care of right. He said the Town should try to get someone
local, someone who can get on the roads immediately after it snows, the nearer to the Town the
better. Larry Bailey said he was concerned about the effect the Town proposal would have on
property taxes five years from now. He urged the Select Board to go back to the bidding
process. Marguerite Cutroni asked if there was flexibility, if the Select Board would consider a
5-year contract instead of a 3-year contract as that might make contractors reconsider.
Chairperson Driscoll said there was flexibility. Peter Ditchett said he didn’t see a problem with a
5-year contract; if the contractor didn’t perform the contract could be canceled. Anita
Siegenthaler wanted to know who meets with contractors when they come in to discuss a
contract. The Town Manager said he and Tim Polky met with Jim Kalloch. Therewasa
guestion as to whether the Town could provide equipment to a contractor. The Town Manager
said that was an option. Chairperson Driscoll asked the Select Board members what they would
liketo do. Selectperson Lunt said he would like the work put out to bids again. Colin Emery
said if that is done it should be done quickly because if the Town should eventually go to its own
proposal and has to get its own equipment it will have to plan well ahead. Selectperson Miller
said he would also like the work to be put out to bids. Selectperson Cote said she would like to
takealook at Jim Kalloch’s proposal and combine services with South Thomaston. Selectperson
Carey said he would like to continue negotiations with Mr. Kalloch. There was a question asto
the legality of negotiation with Mr. Kalloch while considering the bid process. The Town
Manager said the Town had the legal right to negotiate with anyone. He said he was pleased
with the discussion with Mr. Kalloch and asked if the Select Board members would like Mr.
Kalloch to come in and talk to them. Diane Hall asked if the Town would run out of time if



negotiations with Mr. Kalloch fell through and it had to go to the bid process. Ann Matlack said
she felt the opinion of the Town Manager and Mr. Polky should be trusted if they recommend the
Kalloch contract. A motion was made by Selectperson Lunt (Cote) to put the winter roads work
out for bids. He said if the Select Board didn’t go this route it wouldn’t look right and he felt
Mr. Kalloch would be al right with the Select Board doing this. The motion failed 1-4, with
only Selectperson Lunt voting in favor. Selectperson Miller said if the Town Manager and Tim
Polky felt good about the Kalloch contract he thinks the Select Board should go with it.
Selectpersons Carey and Cote also said negotiations should continue with Mr. Kalloch. On a
motion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 4-1 to continue negotiations with Jim Kalloch
for the winter road work, with Selectperson Lunt opposed. The Town Manager distributed
copies of the Kalloch proposal to the Select Board members. The proposal is for a 3-year
contract for snow plowing and sanding at $135,000 for each of the three years, with a provision
for an increase if the cost of gasoline goes above $5.00 agallon. Selectperson Lunt asked what
the cost was for last year’ s contract with Harlan Black. The Town Manager said it was $72,000.
He said the two bids that came in were for $93,000--one bidder was some distance away and one
did not have the equipment. Tim Polky said Mr. Kalloch does excellent work, has the equipment
and islocal. The Town Manager said the Kalloch proposal cost per mile was comparable to
other towns. Diane Hall asked what more the Town was getting from the Kalloch contract as
opposed to last year’s contract since there was such difference in the cost. Chairperson Driscoll
said the Kalloch price was the market price. Marguerite Cutroni said you were comparing the
price of the Kalloch proposal with an old contract prepared three years ago. Ann Matlack said
the old contract price was low because the contractor had been doing the work for the Town for
many years, that the Kalloch’s price is based on today’ s prices and he does agood job. Jim Graf
asked if Kalloch's price per mile for St. George was the same as for South Thomaston. The
Town Manager said it was more and that was because Mr. Kalloch has been doing South
Thomaston’swork for along time. Tim Polky said a decision should be made soon because the
Town could easily run out of time. The Town Manager suggested that the Select Board
memberstalk to Mr. Kalloch. Chairperson Driscoll asked if Mr. Kalloch should come to the
Select Board meeting on June 2. It wasfelt that it should be sooner rather than later. Asthere
will be no regular meeting of the Select Board on May 26, Memorial Day, it was agreed to
schedule a special meeting on May 27 at 4 p.m. to meet with Mr. Kalloch.

- Minutes. ........... On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 5-0
to approve the minutes of May 12, 2008, as written.
- Communications. ... ... (1) The Town Manager distributed to the Select Board a

memorandum received from Jack Bates containing
recommendations regarding the streetlight policy.

(2) Additional victualers license applications were received.
On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was voted
5-0to approve all of the additional applications.

(3) A liquor license application was received from Millers
Lobser Co. A public hearing is scheduled for June 2.

(4) Maine Municipal Association Executive Committee
elections material was received which contained the format
for nominating people to the Executive Committee.

(5) A letter was received from MSAD #50 regarding the new
voting process. A budget meeting is scheduled for May 28



at Georges Valley High School, where a vote on all
articleswill be in the town meeting format. There will be
awritten ballot on June 10.

(6) A warrant calling the June 10 MSAD #50 meeting was
received. It was signed by the Select Board.

(7) A memorandum was received from the Planning Board
concerning an on-site public hearing scheduled for May 24
involving the Port Clyde Water District.

-Warrant . . .......... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:
- Summer Road Work: Tim Polky said he has put in arequest to Black Construction for
paving work.
- Committees. - The Planning Board meets May 20 at 7 p.m.
- The Comprehensive Planning Committee meets May 20.
- The Communication Committee meets May 28 at 6 p.m.
- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets May 28 at 4 p.m.
- The Scholarship Committee had arequest from Georges Valley High
School for arepresentative at the presentation of awards.
- The Reorganization Planning Committee (SAD 5/50) meets May 20 at
6:30 p.m..

OLD BUSINESS:

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.
Tim Polky said the State made a proposal to Hupper consisting mostly of a monetary fine, which
Hupper regjected. The attorneys are still negotiating.

- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager said he still had some drafting to do and the
matter was put off until June.

- Annual Appointments: On a motion by Selectperson Lunt (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to
appoint William Rowland for a one-year term as an aternate to the Coastal Waters M anagement
Board and to appoint David Ausplund, David Banda, Meghan Miller, Craig Wilgus, Heather
Davis, Diane Haight, Rebecca Haskell and Katie Crandall each for aone-year termto the
Recreation Committee. There remains one vacancy on the Recreation Committee.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Streetlights/Review of May 12 Meeting: The Town Manager read the memorandum
received from Jack Bates. The gist of the memorandum was that after hearing comments and
receiving letters regarding the removal of streetlights the Select Board needs to readdress this
issue and come up with different considerations for lights in certain areas. Selectperson Carey
said he would like to take some time to review Mr. Bates's memorandum and put the matter off
until the next meeting. Chairperson Driscoll said the policy may have to be rewritten and
another look taken at the situation.

- Bridge on Fort Point Road: The Town Manager said there was arequest from the
Conservation Committee to put a bog bridge over a stream on Fort Point Road. He said the
Committee needs authorization from the Select Board to proceed on this. Selectperson Carey
asked if thiswas necessary for access and he was told it was. Anita Siegenthaler said the bridge




would also be an environmental plus because of the conditions at that location. On amotion by
Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to authorize the Conservation Committee to seek the
approval of the Department of Environmental Protection for a bog bridge on Fort Point Road.

- Knox County Regional Response Team: Tim Polky said help is being sought for hazmat
responses. They are looking to have two support teams, one for the northern part of the county
and one for the southern part. About 70 response people are needed countywide. Currently in St
George there are 16 people at operations level and one technician. He said the money for
training and hazmat trailers is coming from Homeland Security. The first training will be on
July 12 at the Union Fairgrounds. Mr. Polky said he came to the Select Board to ask for its
approval. There was general agreement by the members of the Select Board to support the
program.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 8:21 p.m., on a motion by Selectperson Miller (Cote), it was voted
5-0to go into Executive Session to review concealed firearm permit applications. The Select
Board came out of Executive Session at 8:24 p.m. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller),
it was voted 4-0-1, with Selectperson Cote abstaining, to approve the applications.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

Reminders. - Staff Meeting, Thursday, May 22, 2008, at 1 p.m.
-MEMORIAL DAY PARADE, May 26, 2008, at 9 a.m.

- Next Regular Select Board Meeting, Monday, June 2, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, M ay 27, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 4:04 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote,
Miller and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Jim Kalloch, Tim Polky,
Steve Jarret and Bernie Cox.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 4:05 p.m., on amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller), it was
voted 5-0 to go into Executive Session to discuss personnel. The Select Board came out of
Executive Session at 4:37 p.m.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.
- Communications. . ...... None.
-Warrant............... Reviewed and signed.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Winter Roads Contract/Meeting with Jim Kalloch: The Town Manager summarized the
winter roads contract review at the last Select Board meeting. He said Jim Kalloch was here to
discuss with the Select Board his proposal for a 3-year contract with the Town of St. George for
snowplowing and sanding at $135,000 for each of the three years, with an increase if the price of
diesel fuel goes over $5.00 agallon. He said that Mr. Kalloch had overlooked the transfer station
in estimating his price but was willing to include it for the same price. The Town Manager asked
Mr. Kalloch how the increase in the price of diesel fuel would be handled. Mr. Kalloch said he
would bill the Town monthly for the difference between $5.00 a gallon and any higher price, but
he also said he would probably absorb any difference if the higher price was only slightly over
$5.00. Selectperson Miller asked Mr. Kalloch if he had an estimate of the number of gallons
required for the work. Mr. Kalloch said he did not have a figure for St. George. Chairperson
Driscoll asked how Mr. Kalloch's contract with South Thomaston was structured. Mr. Kalloch
said his contract with South Thomaston had aflat fee for snowplowing and an hourly rate for
sanding. Chairperson Driscoll asked if Mr. Kalloch’s proposal to St. George was strictly a per-
mile contract, and Mr. Kalloch said it was. Selectperson Carey asked how the billing would be
handled. The Town Manager said the contract price would be structured over a 6-month period
and payments would be included in the first warrant of each month, starting in November.
Selectperson Miller asked Mr. Kalloch if he could do the work with the equipment he had. Mr.
Kalloch said yes and explained how his trucks would be used in various areas of the Town.
Chairperson Driscoll said the Town had received bids for this work of $93,000. Mr. Kalloch
said he could not possibly do the work for that price and he didn’t know what those bidders
might have based their bids on. Selectperson Lunt asked Mr. Kalloch if he did hisown
maintenance. Mr. Kalloch said he had a garage for maintenance, and he said all of histrucks are
serviced before work starts. Chairperson Driscoll asked the Town Manager what had been
budgeted for snow removal. The Town Manager said $75,000. Selectperson Miller said if
$75,000 is what the Town paid in the past it might be why the Town received so few bids this
year. Chairperson Driscoll asked Mr. Kalloch if he had an estimate of the amount of work ina




season. Mr. Kalloch said there were 18-20 sorms in an average winter; this past winter there
were more. Chairperson Driscoll asked Mr. Kalloch if he had equipment dedicated to St.
George. Mr. Kalloch said yes, that his trucks were located nearby with the farthest being in
Thomaston. Asked if he needed a 3-year contract, Mr. Kalloch said he did because of the cost of
equipment. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 5-0 to authorize the Town
Manager to draft for the Select Board' sreview a 3-year winter roads contract with Jim Kalloch
for snowplowing and sanding with a contract price of $135,000 for each of the three years, with
aprovision to compensate Mr. Kalloch for any increase in the price of diesel fuel over $5.00 a
galon. The Town Manager said he could have a draft ready for review by the next meeting of
the Select Board on June 2, 2008. Selectperson Carey said Jim Kalloch should be provided with
acopy of the contract draft at the same time as the members of the Select Board for his review.

- 2008 Certified Ratio: The Town Manager said the Town was required to certify to the State
of Maine that the 2008 assessment is at 70% and the filing date is June 1, 2008. On a motion by
Selectperson Cote (Miller), it was voted 5-0 to set the 2008 certified ratio at 70%.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:10 p.m.
Reminder: - Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, June 2, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, June 2, 2008

The session was called to order a 6:00 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey and Cote
and Town Manager Falla present. Selectpersons Miller and Lunt were absent. Also present were
Jim Graf, Peter Ditchett, Jack Bates, Bob Dennison, Diane Hall, Mark Miller, Gail Miller, Anita
Siegenthaler and Carl Danielson.

PUBLIC HEARING: At 6:01 p.m., a public hearing commenced on the liquor license
application of Miller’ s Lobster Company. The Town Manager said the application was for malt
and wine, no spirits. Jm Graf asked if the business was in the shoreland zone. The Town
Manager said it was but that the restaurant was grandfathered in. Diane Hall asked about
restrooms. Mark Miller said there was a portable toilet. Asked about the business's current
classification, Gail Miller said it was classified as take-out with seating. The Town Manager
said if thisis an expansion of use, the Millers should check with the Code Enforcement Officer
to make sure everything isin order.

The public hearing ended at 6:05 p.m., and the regular meeting of the Select Board
commenced.

At thistime, the Select Board decided to take out of order votes on the liquor license
applications of Miller’s Lobster Company and The Harpoon, which were listed under New
Business on the Agenda. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 3-0 to grant
the liquor license application of Miller’ s Lobster Company, contingent on the approval of the
Code Enforcement Officer. On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 3-0 to grant
the liquor license application of The Harpoon.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:

- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. None.

- Minutes. .............. The minutes of May 19, 2008, were amended as follows: On
Page 6, under Knox County Regional Response Team, “there
are only 16 people’ should be changed to “currently in
St. George there are 16 people.” On a motion by Selectperson
Carey (Cote), it was voted 3-0 to approve the minutes of
May 19, 2008, as amended. On a motion by Selectperson
Cote (Carey), it was voted 3-0 to approve the minutes of
May 27, 2008, as written.

- Communications. . ...... (1) The Town Manager read a letter received from MSAD
#50 regarding the Tax Increment Financing effect on
valuations.

(2) The March 2008 Sales Report was received.

(3) A pole location request was received from Maynard
Tolman, Inc. The request was for two poles and two pole
anchors on Turkey Cove Road. The Town Manager said



Tim Polky checked the location and said it was fine. On a
motion by Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 3-0 to
approve the pole location permit for Maynard Tolman, Inc.

(4) The Town Manager distributed to the Select Board copies
of correspondence received from Jim Brannan concerning
apossible land use legal issue and the response by the
Code Enforcement Officer.

-Warant............... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Summer Road Work: The Town Manager reported that work began today on Clark Island
Road.

- Select Board Agenda for 2008-2009: The Town Manager distributed to the Select Board
members copies of the Select Board's Agenda for 2008-2009 and the Select Board Meeting
Schedule for 2008-2009. Selectperson Carey asked the Town Manager to prepare a calendar for
June. Selectperson Cote asked that the schedule be revised so there would be only two meetings
in July. Discussion was tabled until the next meeting when a full Board would be present.

- 2008-2009 MSAD #50 School Budget: The Town Manager reported on the school digtrict
budget meeting held on May 29, 2008. He said 43 registered voters appeared, 15 from the Town
of St. George. The budget validation referendum vote is scheduled for June 10, 2008. Asked
what would happen if the budget is voted down, the Town Manager said there would have to be
another budget meeting. He also said that there was a deadline and if something wasn’'t done by
acertain date they would have to go back to last year’s budget. Peter Ditchett said the Town of
St. George bears the mgjor share of the burden of the school budget. He said the language in the
warrant has no information as to what is being voted on; in particular, the amount of the budget
is not stated. He said this information needs to be delivered to the voters and that it should be
publicized. Jack Bates said the voters have to know what took place at the budget meeting.
Anita Siegenthaler asked if the budget contained in the booklet that was prepared prior to the
budget meeting is the budget that was approved. The Town Manager said it was. Mrs.
Siegenthaler said copies of the booklet should be available to voters for review on June 10. Jack
Bates asked what the next step would be if the budget was voted down by the citizens of St.
George. The Town Manager said it isthe total vote that counts; that is, if St. George voted it
down but Cushing and Thomaston voted for it the budget passes. There was a discussion on the
proposed consolidation of districts. Chairperson Driscoll said avaluation formula still had to be
discussed. Anita Siegenthaler said she had a conversation with afinance director in another
SAD and wastold that there were administrative savings with consolidation. Chairperson
Driscoll said there would be additional costs with consolidation, including establishing equity in
salary structure. He also said that besides costs there was the issue of control. He said more
would be known after the next meeting of the Reorganization Planning Committee. Jm Graf
asked if citizens would be able to vote on this. Chairperson Driscoll said whatever comes out of
the committee would go to referendum. Getting back to the school budget, Chairperson Driscoll
asked Mr. Ditchett and Mr. Bates to put some numbers together for the Select Board to review
and to prepare a handout for the vote on June 10.

- Committees. - The St. George Days Committee is meeting tonight.

- The Reorganization Planning Committee meets June 4 at 6:30 p.m. at
the MSAD #5 offices.




- The Conservation Committee meets June 5 at 7:30 am.

- The Recreation Committee meets June 8 at 6 p.m.

- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meeting last week was
cancelled.

OLD BUSINESS:

- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager reported that the Hollicker issue has been
settled. He said adeed was signed on May 30 to provide adequate setback.

- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager distributed a memorandum on the Policy
Manual to the Select Board members. He said the memorandum contained the changes he had
prepared for six of the policies that were being amended and he is still working on the
amendments for the personnel and streetlight policies. The Town Manager suggested approving
the amendments that have been completed and dealing with the others when they are available.
The matter was tabled until the next meeting when a full Board would be present.

- Annual Appointments. On a motion by Carey (Cote), it was voted 3-0 to approve the
appointment of William Rowland for a one-year term as an alternate on the Coastal Waters
Management Board and the appointment of Frank Fernandsto fill the vacancy on the Shellfish
Committee created by the death of Mike Hutchinson.

- Streetlights/Review of the May 12" Meeting: The Town Manager said he had not had a
chance to put together a draft on this and that a full Board would be needed for review.

- Review of Draft of Winter Roads Contract: The Town Manager distributed to the Select
Board members the draft of the contract for review. He said the contract had been sent to the
Town attorney for review, who had made some changes. The Town Manager said he is waiting
to hear comments on the proposed contract from the contractor, Jim Kalloch.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None.
The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m.
Reminder: - Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, June 9, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, June 9, 2008

The meeting was called to order a 6:00 p.m. with Board members Driscoll, Carey, Cote,
Miller and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Jim Graf, Peter Ditchett,
Jack Bates, Bob Dennison, Diane Hall, Anita Siegenthaler, Bob Siegenthaler, Bob Cremonni,
Paul LaPorte and Carl Danielson.

OPEN DISCUSSION: Anita Siegenthaler said she would like to discuss the proposed winter
roads contract and Peter Ditchett said he would like to discuss the school budget. Chairperson
Driscoll said those items were on the agenda and would be discussed later.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. Concealed Firearm Permit Applications were added under
Executive Session.
- Minutes. .............. The minutes of June 2, 2008, were amended as follows: On
Page 2, Item (4), “Jim Brennan” should be “Jim Brannan.”
Also on Page 2, under 2008-2009 MSAD #50 School Budget,
“43 votes’ should be “43 voters.” On amotion by
Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 3-0-2 to approve the
minutes of June 2, 2008, as amended, with Selectpersons
Lunt and Miller abstaining because they were not present at
that meeting..
- Communications. ....... (1) The County Tax and Communication Fees Assessment
for 2008 was received from Knox County. The assessment
is $722,829 and the dispatch fee is $52,015.
(2) An innkeepers license application was received from Long
Cove Cottages. On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Cote),
it was voted 5-0 to approve the application.
(3) The May 2008 CEO Report was received.
(4) A thank you letter was received from the family of Verona
Miller for the condolence letter and donation.
-Warrant............... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Summer Road Work: The Town Manager reported that work is continuing on Clark Island
Road and should be finished in two to three weeks.

- Select Board Agenda for 2008-2009: The Select Board reviewed the 2008-2009 agenda and
meeting schedule prepared by the Town Manager. The quarterly budget meeting isto be moved
from July 28 to August 4 0 that there will be only two Select Board meetingsin July.

- Committees: - Selectperson Lunt reported that the Recreation Committee did not have an
officia meeting last night because it did not have a quorum but that there
was unofficial discussion. He also reported that Bernie Cox has declined
the renewal of his appointment to the committee.

- The St. George Days Committee is meeting tonight.

- The Planning Board meets 6/10 at 7 p.m.

- The Communication Committee meets 6/11 a 6 p.m.

- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets 6/11 at 4 p.m.

- The Shellfish Joint Board meets 6/12.

- The Reorganization Planning Committee met on 6/4 with Jim Rier of the




Department of Education. Chairperson Driscoll gave areport of the meeting, the purpose of
which was to get a sense of alternatives available. He said the funding formula of 75%
valuation/25% school population was off the table. The approach now was to maintain the
funding and cost-sharing at the current level of 50%/50% and to find a more equitable formula
He said another issue was local control. Bob Cremonni said most of the residents of St. George
who are aware of the cost of educating a student are upset, and he asked whether the current
formula of 50/50 was fair. Chairperson Driscoll said that when the matter had last been revisited
no one was happy with the 50/50 formula. Mr. Cremonni asked if St. George was being thrown
acarrot by staying with the 50/50 formula. Chairperson Driscoll said the committee is looking
for away to ameliorate a negative effect on Rockland He also said that over four years there
would be adlight negative effect on St. George with the possibility of a greater impact over a
longer period of time. Mr. Cremonni asked whether state legislators should be contacted about
changing the cost-sharing formula. The Town Manager said the state legislators will say they
have to see what comes out of the committee before they can do anything. Anita Siegenthaler
said where she lived in New Jersey school funding problems were in the courts for twenty years.
She said consolidation will have benefits for high school students; local control issues would
involve the grammar schools. She asked how many components are being discussed in coming
up with aformula and if income was one of them. Chairperson Driscoll said there were many
issues involved and the committee will be discussing them. Bob Dennison said another
component that should be considered is homesteads. He said the number of studentsis not the
most important factor; the most important issue is that education costs him more than an
individual in another town. Chairperson Driscoll said that like it or not the perception of St.
Georgeisthat it isavery rich town. Bob Cremonni said we need to do something as a group to
combat that perception, to be more pro-active. Chairperson Driscoll said a way to start isto vote
tomorrow. Anita Siegenthaler said she does not feel that voting against the school budget will
solve the problems. She would like to see changing the formula worked on in some other way.
The Town Manager said there were two issues, governance (based on year-round population)
and finance (based on valuation).

- Selectperson Lunt reported that the St. George Community Association had a
meeting yesterday with State Representative Chris Rector, State Senator Christine Savage and
Bruce Van Note of the Maine DOT. He said the bicycle path was discussed. When Mr. Van
Note said that money was tight, he wastold that the shoulders were already in place and could
deteriorateif not improved. Mr. Van Note said that was a good reason and some motivational
funds from the Town itself might get this started. Selectperson Lunt said he appreciated Bob
Cremonni’ swork in getting Mr. Rector, Ms. Savage and Mr. Van Note to attend the meeting.
Anita Siegenthaler said a lot of time was spent discussing possibilities and the discussion was
creative. She said it was pointed out that the Drift Inn Beach parking lot was underutilized, but if
the shoulders were paved the lot could provide auxiliary parking for Port Clyde. She said the
committeetried to get Mr. Van Note thinking beyond the parameters, that the money would not
be just for shoulder paving. Bob Cremonni said Mr. Rector is going to provide him with away
forward to try to get the State to finish what it started two years ago. He said he takes umbrage
with the suggestion that the State wants the Town to use its money to pave a state road. He said
the Maine DOT has created an attractive nuisance with a good road for driving but no safe place
for bicyclists. Selectperson Lunt said the officials drove the road when they left the meeting.
The Town Manager said there were some right-of-way issues that had to be resolved with respect
to the paving of the shoulders. Selectperson Carey said the State of Maine is “busted” and
believes we will be having this same discussion five years from now.

OLD BUSINESS:
- Land Use Violations Update: The Town Manager said there was nothing new to report.

2




- Policy Manual Review: The Town Manager reviewed with the Select Board members the
changes to the following policies. Town Office Meeting Rooms, Concealed Firearms Permit
Process, Duties and Responsibilities of the Budget Committee, Compensation of Members of
Town Boards, Conservation Commission, and Winter Sand Policy. On amotion by Selectperson
Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve the changes.

- Annual Appointments. The Select Board members signed forms for the appointments made
at the last meeting.

- Streetlights/Review of the May 12" Meeting: The Town Manager read the proposed
changes to the Streetlight Policy. Selectperson Carey asked if the Board considered a streetlight
redundant but did not fit into the criteria contained in the policy could it not be removed. The
Town Manager said the criteria contained in the policy were things that may be considered.
Chairperson Driscoll asked if the Board should proceed by adopting the policy and then taking
another look at the issues raised at the May 12" meeting. A motion by Selectperson Miller
(Lunt) to make no change with respect to the streetlights and to keep the streetlights asthey are
now was defeated 2-3, with Chairperson Driscoll and Selectpersons Carey and Cote opposed.
Chairperson Driscoll asked how requests for removal would be considered. Selectperson Lunt
said arequest could be made in writing, and the Town Manager said that iswhat is in the policy.
Selectperson Carey asked if periodic review was in the town charter. The Town Manager said
no, it wasinthe policy. There was general agreement to remove periodic review from the
policy. On a motion by Selectperson Cote (Lunt), it was voted 4-1 to approve the changes to the
Streetlight Policy, as amended, with Selectperson Carey opposed. The Town Manager was
directed to prepare alist of streetlightsto be changed to downward-shielding, alist of written
requests for removal of streetlights, and any other streetlight issues not addressed at tonight’s
meeting.

- Review of Draft Winter Roads Contract: Chairperson Driscoll asked for comments from the
Select Board members with respect to the proposed contract with Jim Kalloch. Selectperson
Lunt said he felt the work should be put out for bids once more. Anita Siegenthaler asked what
the 40% increase in the Kalloch contract over the bids received was going to buy the Town.
Chairperson Driscoll reviewed the history of the process which led to the Kalloch contract. Peter
Ditchett said in three years the Town will be paying Kalloch what it would have paid Reggie
Montgomery for five years. Chairperson Driscoll said that besides the length of the contract
there were other problems with Mr. Montgomery’s proposal. Selectperson Lunt said he feels
that the extra $120,000 the Town would be paying Mr. Kalloch over the three-year term of his
contract is not petty cash, and he does not like playing fast and loose with the pocketbook of the
citizens of St. George. Jim Graf asked why the second bidder was rejected, and Chairperson
Driscoll said it was distance. Selectperson Lunt said that contractor would have had his
equipment stored locally and would have hired the same workers. Chairperson Driscoll said the
chairperson of the Budget Committee spoke in favor of the Kalloch contract at the meeting in
which it was discussed and there was unanimous opinion on the quality of Mr. Kalloch’s work.
The Town Manager said when you compare the factorsin Mr. Kalloch’s South Thomaston
contract and his proposed contract with the St. George he doesn’t think the Town istoo far off
from South Thomaston's price. Jack Bates noted that Mr. Kalloch’s contract calls for himto
provide all equipment, personnel and fuel below $5.00 a gallon and asked if there were any
additional factors that might increase the price. The Town Manager said there were not. Peter
Ditchett asked if Mr. Kalloch has to acquire any equipment to do the work. The Town Manager
said yes, but the equipment has already been ordered. Selectperson Lunt said the Swansville
bidder has the equipment and the references. He said he cannot in good conscience give away
$120,000 for the same results. He then made a motion to put the work out for bids again, but
there was no second to the motion. On a motion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted 4-1

3



to approve the 3-year contract with Jim Kalloch for the winter roads work, with Selectperson
Lunt opposed.

- 2008-2009 MSAD #50 School Budget Informatiion: Peter Ditchett said the cost of
educating a student should be made available to the public, and he has provided figures.
Chairperson Driscoll said communicating information about the budget to votersis a good thing.
He said we have a Communication Committee, and all means available to the Town should be
used to educate the public. Selectperson Cote asked about a handout for tomorrow’ s vote.
Chairperson Driscoll said he didn't think there was anything that could be done intime. He said
thisisalong-termissue. Mr. Ditchett asked about utilizing the Town newsletter. Chairperson
Driscoll said there could be aregular feature in the newsletter about the amount of money that
leaves the Town for education costs. Anita Siegenthaler suggested that the Town representatives
on the Reorganization Planning Committee prepare a clean, concise article for the September
issue of the newsletter. She said it doesn’'t have to be complex, just very factual. Chairperson
Driscoll said the matter is now in the hands of the Communication Committee.

NEW BUSINESS:

- Annual Planning Meeting: The Town Manager distributed a proposed policy on the
Relationship of Boards, Committees and Administration. He said he needs direction on how to
proceed in getting everyone together with a facilitator.

- Basic Training for Town Officials: The Town Manager said this was something that the
Select Board might want to incorporate into the Annual Planning Meeting. He said there were
two programs that might be of interest — property tax school to be held at Colby College in
Waterville and an elected officials workshop on June 17" and 18"™. The Town Manager
distributed to the Select Board members information on a change in state law which saysthat all
elected state and local officials must complete atraining course on the freedom of access law.
He said the Select Board might want to have committee and board chairmen in to review this as
well. Chairperson Driscoll said the Select Board should define this better before bringing others
in, a suggestion which was met with general agreement.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 7:46 p.m., on a motion by Selectperson Carey (Cote), it was voted
5-0to go into Executive Session to review concealed firearm permit applications. The Select
Board came out of Executive Session at 7:48 p.m. On amotion by Selectperson Lunt (Miller), it
was voted 4-0-1, with Selectperson Cote abstaining, to approve two (2) applications.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:49 p.m.

Reminder: - Next Select Board Meeting, Monday, June 16, 2008, 6 p.m., Town Office.

Respectfully submitted,

Diane E. Speranza, Board Secretary



ST. GEORGE SELECT BOARD & ASSESSORSMEETING MINUTES
Monday, June 16, 2008

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m. with Select Board members Driscoll, Carey,
Cote, Miller and Lunt and Town Manager Falla present. Also present were Peter Ditchett, Jack
Bates and Diane Hall.

OPEN DISCUSSION: None.

REGULAR SESSION:
- Adjustmentsto Agenda. .. (1) Newsletter Review added under New Business.
(2) 70™ Anniversary Resolution added under New Business.
(3) Disposition of Old Engine 3 added under New Business.
(4) Appointment of Acting Town Manager added under New

Business.
- Minutes. .............. On amotion by Selectperson Carey (Miller, it was voted 5-0 to
approve the minutes of June 9, 2008, as written.
- Communications. . ...... (1) A letter of resignation from the Communication Committee

was received from Bob Siegenthaler. On a motion by
Selectperson Cote (Carey), it was voted 5-0 to accept the
resignation with regret.

(2) Victualers/innkeepers license applications were received
from the Humble Farmer B& B, Sul Mare and the Lilac
Cottage B&B. On amotion by Selectperson Miller
(Carey), it was voted 5-0 to approve the applications.

(3) A Knox/Waldo 2008 Demographic Snapshot was received
from Mid-Coast Regional Planning and contains informa-
tion on population, housing units and median household
income. The Town Manager said he sent it to the
Committee to Appraise Town Government and will provide
copiesto the Select Board.

-Warrant............... Reviewed and signed.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT:

- Summer Road Work: The Town Manager reported that the work on Clark I1sland Road is
continuing.

- Reguest for Partial Pre-payment of Mortgage: The Town Manager reported that the Town
has had a request from Jim Skoglund for a payment of $20,000 now on the mortgage he holds,
with regular payments to continue in August. The Town Manager said there was currently a
bal ance of $150,000 on the mortgage. There was general agreement by the Select Board to make
the requested payment of $20,000.

- Committees. - The Planning Board meets 6/24.

- The Communication Committee meets 6/25.

- The Committee to Appraise Town Government meets 6/25. Chairperson
Driscoll complimented the Committee on its report on Town personnel. He said they have
prepared a survey and are discussing who isto be surveyed, such as taxpayers or registered




